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NIHOP and NCP RFQ Addendum 3 
RFQ issue date: December 12, 2014 

Addendum 3 issue date: February 10, 2015 
 

Note: Addendum 3 is the final addendum to the RFQ. HPD is not accepting 
any additional questions regarding the NIHOP and NCP RFQ. 

 
 
Contents of the Addendum 
 
A. Questions and Answers – Enclosed is a summary of questions 
and answers that were sent to the NIHOP & NCP email address. 
 
 

Sites 
 
Q1. According to the insert (Appendix) contained in the RFQ there are 
16 NIHOP sites in the Bronx that divide evenly as 8 in 
Morrisania/Tremont and 8 in Melrose. There is also a NCP site in Morris 
Heights. In both cases, are the sites suited to development of more than 
one structure per site, or is it simply one site one structure?   
A. Please see Addendum 1 to the RFQ, which provides the most up-to-date 
information about the sites and RFQ Neighborhoods/Areas.  Additionally, 
Applicants should keep in mind that they are not submitting site-specific 
information at this stage of the RFQ. 

 
 
RFQ Neighborhoods/Areas (aka Clusters) 
 
Q1. Is there a limit to the maximum number of clusters or sites for which 
a respondent can apply? If a respondent is applying for six clusters or 
sites, can the respondent list its preferences numerically (1st 
preference, 2nd preference, 3rd preference, etc)? 
A. There is not a limit on the number of RFQ Neighborhoods (or clusters)—
but when you apply for a cluster you are applying to develop all of the sites 
that are identified as part of that RFQ Neighborhood/cluster and of a 
particular programming associated with that cluster (NIHOP or NCP or both, if 
you specify both) and must demonstrate the ability to secure financing for all 
of the sites in that cluster.  Regarding, preferences, yes, Applicants should 
indicate the Team’s RFQ Neighborhood preference, if applying for more than 
one RFQ Neighborhood (cluster). 
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Submission Requirements 
 
Q1. Is there a word or page limit to the narrative in Tab B? 
A:  We will leave that up to your discretion.  We want you to cover as much 
information as you determine is necessary to convey the strength of your 
Qualifications and your experience in the neighborhood.   
 
 
Q2. Can HPD provide a sample 'Financial Letter of Support'? 
A. HPD cannot provide a sample financial letter of support.  Please refer to 
the description provided in the RFQ. 
 
 
Q3. Does a letter of intent to support past projects through a borough 
president’s or council member’s discretionary funds (Resolution A 
funding) count as a letter of community support? 
A. Yes, the type of letter you referenced counts as an example of community 
support. 
 
 
Q4. Is an NCP applicant required to have an in-house management 
operation?  Assuming third-party management is permitted, does that 
third-party need to be identified in the application? 
A. For NCP, the management company does not need to be in house, but the 
entity providing management services does need to be part of the 
Development Team that submits a Qualifications application. 
 
 
Q5. In Form C1, principals of an entity for corporations are defined as 
“the names of officers and any shareholders owning 10% or more.”  If 
our entity is a not for profit corporation with no shareholders, who do 
we enter as principals? 
A. Complete all of C1, but under the principals table indicate that the reviewer 
should “See Form C2.”  Provide information as requested in C2. 
 
 
Q6. In Form C2, when you ask for the directors, officers, and key staff of 
the not-for-profit, do you need the entire board of directors or just 
senior staff or both? 
A. Please include all members of the board of directors and key staff.  
 
 
  



3 

 

Q7. Also in Form C2, when you ask for major sources of funding for the 
not-for-profit, do you need all major sources (we might have 30+ that 
range between $3,000 to $100,000) or do you want the major sources 
(>$100,000)? 
A. Please include all sources. 
 
Q8. Regarding Form E, for non-profit applicants, where there are no 
principals with an ownership stake (we would be forming an HDFC as 
general partner), do I need to fill this out? 
A. Yes, non-profits must complete Form E.  The information should be for the 
non-profit organization, not an individual. 
 
 


